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The house at Bedford Plantation is a modest one-story frame farm home with
a long front gallery set beneath the unbroken slope of a gable roof. The long,
low silhouette, the single-pile plan without hall, the set-back gallery, the
plastered front wall combined with clapboard sides and back, and the brick-
nogged, heavy-frame construction are typical regional developments from Creole
antecedents. The full assemblage of such characteristics is typical of lower
Louisiana but unusual in Mississippi.

The house faces northwest from the top of a gentle rise close by the north-
east side of a gravel road leading from the Cannonsburg community southeast
through Adams County. It is surrounded by a Tlawn dotted with crepe myrtle and
cedars, the whole set among pastures and pine forests on the eighty-three-acre
tract termed the "Homestead . . . part of Bedford Plantation" in an 1881 survey
map of the property.

The interior contains three front rooms, each twenty-one feet square by
fourteen feet high, set side by side across the front of the house, with chimneys
on the common walls. A long back room, twelve feet deep and possib]y once an
open gallery, extends across the center room and a portion of the end rooms but
is terminated at each end by a small "cabinet" room of the same construction and
detailing as the main rooms. An early-twentieth-century gallery, now enclosed,
occupies the entire width of the house at the back. The space beneath each
main end room is excavated to form a brick-walled cellar room.

Interior and exterior trim is in the late Federal style used in the Natchez
area during the late 1820s. The three nearly identical mantelpieces are especially
fine essays in that style. Moldings are used both on the interior and exterior
to crown the bases and to form backbands to the door and window casings. Simple
batten doors, some with transoms, are used throughout except in the center bay,
where front, back, and intermediate doors are in the Greek Revival style with
two vertical, molded panels. These stylistically later doors were or1g1na11y
equipped w1th mid-nineteenth-century hardware.

The integrity of the Bedford Plantation house is Tessened but not seriously
impaired by several changes made during the first half of the twentieth century.
These changes entailed the replacement of the clapboards, the removal of the
facade stucco, and the reworking of the front gallery. More recently, space
has been found for the kitchen and baths in the "cabinet" rooms and in one of
the end rooms. The earlier changes are being reversed as part of a long-term
restoration project, of which the current phase is the restoration of the front
gallery to its former appearance.

Of the outbuildings, only the schoolhouse survives. It is located about
one hundred yards north-northeast of the house. This one-room frame structure
is covered with board and batten walls and a gable roof. There is a small gal-
lery on the front and an attached shed on the rear. The structure apparently
dates from the second half of the nineteenth century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Combining construction techniques and features more commonly associated with
the Creole building tradition in Louisiana, the residence at Bedford Plantation
is a well-preserved example of a vernacular architectural form indigenous to the
lower Mississippi Valley but rarely constructed in Mississippi. It is one of the
few documented structures in the state employing brick-nogged, heavy-frame con-
struction. The house, which stylistically dates from the late 1820s or early
1830s, was the seat of planter Thomas Hall's 6,318-acre Bedford Plantation, which
he began assembling in 1831 (Probate Record: Real Estate, 3:120). The property
was the site of a Civil War skirmish on October 2, 1864, involving Colonel Embury D.
Osband's troops as they moved from Vicksburg to Natchez (0. R., 1,39:575-576).

Thomas Hall, first mentioned in Adams County in the 1830 census, was born
in Mississippi and died in 1856, leaving an impressive estate of over 5,500 acres
to be divided among his four heirs. The house and "dower" tract of 1,431.95 acres
were left to his wife. In 1880 the acreage surrounding the house was reduced to
an 81.75 acre "homestead tract" to satisfy the creditors of Hall's daughter and
son-in-law, Sallie T. and Edmund Ogden (Deed Book XX:748-50). The 1880 homestead
tract remains intact today under single ownership except for .73 acre on the
opposite side of the public roads. . ,
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION )
The boundary of the nominated property begins at the southeasterly corner of the

intersection of the Cannonsburg Road and the crossroad which is located just below
the northerly line of Section 56, Township 8 North, Range 1 West. It then runs
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easterly along the southerly side of said crossroad for 212 feet, then
south 57 degrees 18 minutes east for 1679 feet, then south 27.75 degrees
west for 2059 feet, then north 75 degrees west for 264 feet, then north

46 degrees west for 1204 feet, then north 5 degrees west for 1772 feet,
then north 80.75 degrees east to the easterly side of the Cannonsburg

Road, then with the easterly side of the Cannonsburg Road to the beginning.




